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The Richard Mendenhall House, which sits only a few feet from the main 
road through Jamestown, is part of a farm complex including a large barn, a 
smokehouse, a well house, and other outbuildings Large trees, a stream, 
and the rolling terrain combine to create a pleasant rural atmosphere in the 
midst of a developing areao The farm just across the road from the 
Mendenhall Store, which in turn is not far from the Quaker Meeting House" 

The Mendenhall farmhouse consists of a two-story main block of plain­
typically Quaker--design, plus a porch on three sides and a number of 
additions to the west and rear The main block is of brick laid in Flemish 
bond" now painted white" It is covered by a gable roof and rests on a full 
basement with stone foundation walls" (The downward slope of the terrain 
from front to rear allows the basement to be above ground level at the rear.) 
An interior end chimney rises on each side The three-bay front (north) 
facade is protected by a full-length two-tier porch whose roof is an �e�x�t�e�n�s�i�o�n�~� 

of the main roof6 The porch appears to have been a fairly early addition$ m 
Chamfered posts occur at both levels; between them runs a plain balustrade m 
with square balusters and heavy, plain rails" All the openings of the main 
block have the segmental-arched heads characteristic of the Quaker and 
Germanic architecture in the area. The central front entrance consists of 
a �s�i�~�g�l�e� door set in a plain frame. In the area between the lintel and the 
arch is a small three-light transom, the space around it being filled in 
with plaster" The door is most unusual, having the upper half paneled in 
the form of a st. Andrew1s cross. Below are two small horizontal panels 
above two large vertical ones. The central door at the second level has 
four panels and no transom" 

The sides of the house were probably originally,identical, but only the 

z 

o east side remains unaltered. There are no openings at the first level; two 
windows occur at the second; and two small round openings framed by radiating z 
bricks flank the chimney in the �g�a�b�l�e�~� �~�e�n�d�i�n�g� along the east side and 
across the rear of the house is a one-story porch with a hip roof It is 
raised on brick piers and its floor is laid over hand-hewn beams and rough 
logs" The posts and balustrade are similar to the front porch. Access to 
the basement is at the rear, beneath the porch@ The rear facade is similar 
to the front, except that the first-floor openings have been changed some-
what, and the second-floor door has been replaced by a window" 

On the west side of the house there are three additions" That at the 
front abuts the front porch, with a door at the end of the porch providing 
an outside entrance on its east wall" This addition, which is thought to 
have been built not long after the main block, is two stories high, with a 
gable roof parallel to but lower than that of the main block. The lower 
half of this section is of brick; the upper, of frameo To the rear of .this 
is a narrow middle addition, with a shed roof built directly on the side of 
the main block beneath the gable level; it appears to be the most recently 
built section.. The third addition, still lower and to the rear, has a 
gable roof perpendicular to the main block and front �a�d�d�i�t�i�o�n�~� This section 
was probably a separate building, perhaps a kitchen, and appears to be about 
the same age as the house... It is of brick laid in Flemish bond and has at 
the rear a large single-shoulder chimney with a stepped base. The west side 
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is covered by a shed addition; the east has a door and a window. 

All three levels of the interior of the main block including the basement 
follow a hall-and-parlor plan. In the basement, the stone walls are plastered 
and there a large segmental-arched fire opening in the stone base of the 
chinmey on the east wall" An iron cooking arm is in place At the rear of th 
east room is a window with crude solid shutters hung with strap hinges The 
main floor has plaster over the brick walls, and wide beaded baseboards and 
chair rails appear on the outer walls .. The inner partition wall is of wide 
vertical sheathing The windows and outside doors are set in deep spiayed 
reveals and have plain frames. Both rooms have Greek Revival mantels with 
plain pilasters supporting a shelf; that on the east wall is small and off­
center on the chimney breast. The doors here, most of them having six panels, 
are hung with strap hinges The hinges on the closet door beneath the stair 
have the leather washers still in place. The narrow enclosed stair ascends 
in two flights with winders in the southeast corner of the east room. The 
stair well is protected by a balustrade similar to that of the front porch. 
The finish of the second story is much like the first , The east chimney has 
only a stove flue; the west one, a segmental-arched opening behind a late 
nineteenth or early twentieth century mantel which features freestanding Ionic 
colonnettes" The windows flanking it have been filled in but are still quite 
visible in outline The attic is one large room, unheated, and lit only by 
the small round openings in each gable 

The arrangement of the rooms in the west and rear additions is rather 
confusing, especially since they are at descending levels from front to rear, 
with short flights of steps between them" The largest is the two-story front 
section, finished with plain trim and plaster walls An enclosed stair rises 
along the east wall" The middle room is rather curious and may have been 
added, seemingly in a rather makeshift fashion, to connect the front and rear 
sections. On the first floor, on its east wall the stone foundation of the 
main block is left uncovered, and on the west wall, there is what appears to 
be a solid stone outcropping between floor and wall, at baseboard level. The 
rest of the walls are plastered.. On the second floor of this section, the 
east wall is unfinished, revealing the unpainted brick and filled-in windows 
of the main block.. This section is unheated and crudely finished" The rear 
addition is the lowest (its east door opens at the ground or basement level to 
the rear of the main block) and has a single large room on the first floor and 
an attic above" The heavy ceiling joists and rafters are visible at both 
levels" In the first-floor room the fireplace has a square fire opening with 
a plain wooden shelf supported by brackets A large cooking arm in the 
fireplace suggests that this section served as a kitchen" 

Among the outbuildings is a large early barn of the Pennsylvania German 
type The lower story is of large stones and contains ; the upper, whic 
projects out over the first and protects the windows of the stalls from weathe , 
is of vertical boards Inside are very heavy timbers and a number of wooden 
locks The well house, which provides a third side to the paved yard 
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enclosed by the main block and kitchen wing of the dwelling, is of brick, 
with a gable roof. Other outbuildings are of frame Still standing is a 
fence with log posts supporting a gate attached with strap hinges 
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In 1762, James Mendenhall, a Quaker from Pennsylvania, settled near 
Deep River in what is now Guilford County. His father, Aaron, had preceded 
him, arriving in this area in 1754. James Mendenhall built a house, prob­
ably on a 625-acre tract granted him August 27, 1762, but within a few years 
he left to live in Georgia@ James's son, George, however, either remained 
or returned later, and as far as is known it was he who laid out a small 
town on his land, calling it Jamestown. It later became one of the more 
significant settlements in Guilford Count yo In 1807 Jamestown was one of 
three voting places in the count yo 

The present Mendenhall house was built in 1811 probably by Richard 
Mendenhall, son of the founder of Jamestown. Richard, who served in the 
state legislature in 1805 and 1806, and his brothers were leading citizens 
of the area. In 1812 he married Mary Pegg, and they had a number of 
children among whom was Nereus Mendenhall o Nereus distinguished himself in 
a number of endeavors but should perhaps be remembered mainly for his 
efforts as an educator and a sustaining force in.the Friends School at New 
Garden Meeting, a center of Quaker learning near Jamestown 0 This New 
Garden school became the present Guilford College in 1888 0 Richard 
Mendenhall's house was a noted gathering place for people devoted to 
learning and to discussion of philosophical and religious questions. The 
homestead was also the location of a tannery and other productive activity. 
It is thought to have served for some time as an inn. 

The hous e was held by the Mendenhalls until around the turn of the 
twentieth century. After a succession of owners it is now the property of 
Mrs William G. Ragsdale, Jr. 

The Richard Mendenhall House, built by a member of one of Jamestown's 
most important early families, is an excellent example of the rather austerE 
but comfortable brick buildings characteristic of Quaker architecture. Itl 
is distinguished by the use of segmental-arched openings, handsome brick­
work, and plain but good craftsmanship. The Mendenhall Plantation Buildingc 
provide a rare and essentially intact survival of the Pennsylvania-influencEd 
farm complex built by Quaker settlers in this area of North Carolina 0 TheSE 
buildings, together with the nearby Mendenhall Store and Quaker Meeting Ho~e, 
form a compact, complete, and representative collection of Quaker buildings 
probably unique in the state 
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